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ADDENDUM No. 1 
 

RFP No. 19-12 
 

WWTP Headworks Improvement Project 
 

Due: June 11, 2019 by 2:00 p.m. (local time) 
 
The following questions and answers are provided for the Request for Proposal for WWTP 
Headworks Improvement Project, RFP No. 19-12, on which proposals will be received on/or 
before the date and time listed above. 
 
The information contained herein shall take precedence over the original documents and all 
previous addenda (if any), and is appended thereto. This Addendum includes 17 pages. 
 
The Proposer is to acknowledge receipt of this Addendum No. 1, including all attachments 
in its Proposal by so indicating in the proposal that the addendum has been received. 
Proposals submitted without acknowledgement of receipt of this addendum may be 
considered non-conforming. 
 
The following forms provided within the RFP Document must be included in submitted 
proposal: 
 

 Attachment B - Non-Discrimination Declaration of Compliance 
 Attachment C - Living Wage Declaration of Compliance 
 Attachment D - Vendor Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form 

 
Proposals that fail to provide these completed forms listed above upon proposal opening 
will be rejected as non-responsive and will not be considered for award. 
 
I. QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 
The following Questions have been received by the City.  Responses are being provided in 
accordance with the terms of the RFP.  Respondents are directed to take note in its review of the 
documents of the following questions and City responses as they affect work or details in other 
areas not specifically referenced here. 
 
1. Can the City provide design drawings for the Headworks structures? 

RESPONSE:  PDF’s of the Headworks structures for both the 1977 and 1997 design 
modifications for the Screen & Grit Building were provided to the Pre-Bid Meeting 
attendees via the City’s Liquid Files FTP site.  Those drawings along with all previously 
posted information will be made available again via the City’s Liquid Files FTP site. 
 

2. Pre-Bid Meeting Attendee List. 
RESPONSE:  The Pre-Bid Meeting Attendee list is attached. 

 
3. Are odor control modifications to be included for this Headworks Project? 

RESPONSE:  No odor control modifications are to be included for this Headworks 
project.  A separate WWTP Area Odor Study project is in progress to address odors.   

 
4. Can the city provide a map showing influent sewers to the WWTP? 

RESPONSE:  A drawing showing WWTP influent sewers is attached.   
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5. Can the City provide MLSS and ML VSS data that can be used to estimate the non-volatile 
solids fraction? 
RESPONSE:  The WWTP collects and laboratory tests mixed liquor samples from each 
operating treatment train daily.  Example data sheets for January and February 2019 
are attached.  Additional data can be provided to the Successful Firm.    

 
6. Where is ferric chloride used at the WWTP?   

RESPONSE:  Ferric chloride is added to the last oxic zone (zone #3) in each treatment 
train for effluent polishing.  We typically use approximately 1-2 gph per treatment train.   

 
7. Will it be possible to visit the WWTP a second time before the proposal due date? 

RESPONSE:  Yes, please contact me at cenglert@a2gov.org by email with available 
dates/times when you would like to visit the Headworks area.  

 
8. Can the City provide information regarding the grit pumps used to convey flow to the Eutek 

units? 

RESPONSE:  Grit pump information is attached.  The WWTP uses a combination of 
Flygt and KSB submersible pumps.  Two Flygt pumps were installed in the North 
Channel in 2017 after two KSB pumps failed.  Two KSB submersible grit pumps are in 
the South Channel.  Grit pump information will also be uploaded to City’s Liquid Files 
FTP site. 
 

9. What type of flow meter is used at the headworks, where is it location, is it reliable and what 
type of data is stored and available for review? 
RESPONSE:  Raw influent to the WWTP is not metered at the headworks.  However, 
wastewater flow downstream of the Influent Flow Splitter (IFS) is measured using 
magnetic flow meters.  Flow to the East Plant is metered and individual flows to West 
Plant train 1 and train 2 are also metered.  Flow to and from the Retention Basin is also 
measured by magnetic flow meters.  The measured flows are used to calculate the 
WWTP raw influent flow. 
 

10. How and where are the water levels used to control operations measures/recorded, and do 
the levels control operation conditions automatically, manually, or a combination? 
RESPONSE:  We have level sensors to monitor the water surface elevation in both the 
north and south channels upstream of the bar screens.  We have no automatic controls 
to change bar screen rake intervals or to start up and shut down screens.  The current 
system is a manual operation. 
 

11. What are the current set points for operation as they relate to screens and grit equipment and 
the use of a single original channel and the two newer channels?  
RESPONSE:  System operation is manual and we use bar screen timers to adjust the 
rake frequency.  The Eutec grit equipment can be operated in “heavy” or “light” modes. 
 

12. Can you provide any information of the grit deposition patterns before the screens, covering 
the typical range and depth of accumulation for normal and low flow conditions?   
RESPONSE:  We don’t measure or record grit deposition around the bar screens.  
Recent operator observations suggest that when our plant flow is less than 18 MGD 
only one screen is needed.  If we operate two bar screens at that flow rate we notice an 
accumulation of grit in front of the bar screens. 



Addendum-1-3 
 

 
13. Just to be sure, other than changing the submersible grit pumps, if needed, or piping revisions 

to meet the needs of the new grit separation systems, or possibly minor improvements to 
improve the grit collection channels/sumps, there are no expectations to modify the grit 
collection system (i.e. change to another style like a mechanical vortex) to improve the 
collection performance?  
RESPONSE:  The City is looking for the Successful Firm to evaluate the existing system 
and provide recommendations needed to improve grit capture in order to minimize 
carryover and adverse impact to downstream wastewater treatment equipment or 
processes.  Therefore, equipment changes, structural changes or other modifications 
are to be considered.  
 

14. There is an Odor Abatement Study presently being performed for the plant.  The Headworks 
is currently tied into odor control.  To help determine our design fees, please clarify which firm 
will be analyzing the required number of air exchanges and designing modifications to the 
building heating, ventilation and odor control systems.  We do understand that there will be 
exchanges between the successful Headworks firm and the Odor Abatement Study firm to 
discuss the conclusion sand recommendation for the odor abatement study.  
RESPONSE:  The Headworks area is currently not connected to the Solids Handling 
Building odor control system.  The Headworks area will be evaluated for odor 
emissions by the Odor Study Consultant who will provide recommendations if 
necessary.  At this time, the Headworks Consultant shall focus efforts on the WWTP’s 
wastewater treatment needs and not odor control or ventilation needs within the 
Headworks area. 

 
Offerors are responsible for any conclusions that they may draw from the information contained 
in the Addendum. 






























